
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

November 16
th

, 2015 

 

6:00 PM Closed Session 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 96



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners November 16
th
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 2 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items found 
on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters 
not shown on this agenda. 

 
Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 

 
Agenda 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

November 16th, 2015 
6:00 P.M. - Closed Session 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 
6:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman P. Michael McLain 
 

Closed Session - Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with Attorney to 
discuss matter relating to potential litigation and current litigation Case Number: 
215-cv-00021 - Camden County et al v. Northeastern Community Development 
Corporation et al. 

 
7:00 P.M. Welcome 
 
 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Commissioner Clayton Riggs 
 
ITEM 1 Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of 
comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and 
other issues. 

 
ITEM 2 Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 
 
 
ITEM 3 Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

 
A. Personnel Policy Changes   ........................................................................ (Pg. 5--8) 

 
ITEM 4 Public Hearings 

 
A. Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-10-01 –  
 Proposed amendments to Chapter 151 (Unified Development Ordinance) of 

the Camden County Code Ordinances   ................................................. (Pg. 9-18) 
 

B. Public Hearing – Special Use Permit Preliminary Plat Green Meadows – 9 lot 
Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-08-04) ................................................. (Pg. 19-63) 

 

Page 2 of 96



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners November 16
th
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 2 

ITEM 5 New Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – October  ............................................................ (Pg. 64-71) 
 
B. Resolution No. 2015-11-01- Establishing a policy for approval and opening 

of Closed Session minutes and general accounts ................................ (Pg. 72-73) 
 
ITEM 6 Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by 

one motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a 
member of the Board.) 
 
A. Draft Minutes -   ............................................................................................ (Pg. 74) 
B. Tax Collection Report   ........................................................................... (Pg. 75-76) 
C. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases   ...................................................... (Pg. 77-79) 
D. Volunteer Forms   .................................................................................... (Pg. 80-81) 

 
ITEM 7 Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 
ITEM 8 County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 
 
ITEM 9 Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ....................... (Pg. 82-96) 

 
A. Register of Deeds Report – October .................................................... (Pg. 83-84) 
B. Youth Forum Sponsorship Letter   ....................................................... (Pg. 85-86) 
C. SPCA Meeting Minutes - October   ...................................................... (Pg. 87-89) 
D. NCDOT Newsletter – November 2015   ........................................... (Pg.90 - 93) 
E. ECSU ranks in top 20 for best value .......................................................... (Pg. 94) 
F. 2016 Holiday Schedule – NC Administrative Office of the Courts ....... (Pg. 95) 
G. 2017 Holiday Schedule – NC Administrative Office of the Courts ....... (Pg. 96) 
 

ITEM 10 Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 
 
ITEM 11 Adjourn 

Page 3 of 96



IF YOU HAVE ANYTHING TO ADD/DELETE TO THE 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA, PLEASE AMEND THE 

AGENDA BEFORE ENTERING CLOSED SESSION. 

THANK YOU. 

 

November 16
th

, 2015 

 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM  

 
1. Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a) (3) – to consult with Attorney to discuss matter relating to 

potential litigation and current litigation. Case: 2:15-cv-00021 - Camden County et al v. 

Northeastern Community Development Corporation et al. 

 

Page 4 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

Old Business 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (3 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County Manager  
 

ITEM TITLE:   Personnel Policy Changes 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Changes to the Camden County Personnel Policy as proposed by the 

Personnel Committee Meeting which was held on October 8
th

. 

Committee members consisted of Vice Chairman Duckwall, 

Commissioner Riggs, HR Specialist Stephanie Jackson, and County 

Manager Mike Renshaw. County Attorney John Morrison has 

reviewed the recommended revisions. These are the changes as per 

the Board of Commissioners meeting November 2, 1015. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

To make a motion to approve  

 

(a) The changes to Article VI. Conditions of Employment as proposed 

to specify the spouse, sibling, child or parent.  

 

(b) The changes to Article XI. Grievance Procedure and Adverse 

Action Appeal to add an appeal process after County Manager 

decision and to add a step for department heads to follow.  

 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 5 of 96



ARTICLE VI. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT  
 
Section 6. Employment of Relatives 
 
The County prohibits the hiring and employment of immediate family in permanent positions within the same work 
unit department. "Immediate Family" is defined in Article VIII, Section 12. The County also prohibits the employment 
of any person into a permanent position who is an immediate family member the spouse, sibling, child or parent of 
individuals holding the following positions: County Board of Commissioners Member, County Manager, Assistant 
County Manager, Human Resources Director, Clerk to the Board, Finance Officer, or County Attorney. Otherwise, the 
County will consider employing family members or related persons in the service of the County, provided that such 
employment does not: 

 
1) result in a relative supervising relatives; 
 
2) result in a relative auditing the work of a relative; 
 
3) create a conflict of interest with either relative and the County; or  
 
4) create the potential or perception of favoritism. 

 
This clause shall not be retroactive concerning any relative currently working for the County or anyone who has filed 
for election at the time of adoption.  
 
Pursuant to G.S. 153A-103, the Board of Commissioners may approve for employment by the Sheriff or Register of 
Deeds a relative by (a) blood, (b) marriage, (c) nearer kinship than first cousin, or a person who has been convicted 
of a crime involving moral turpitude if the Commissioners make a written finding of fact that such employment was 
requested by the Sheriff or Register of Deeds and the reasons set forth by the Sheriff or Register of Deeds that 
he/she feels that employing this person would be in the best interests of the County and should not follow the hiring 
policies set forth in this Policy. 
 

Page 6 of 96



 

Page | 41  
 

ARTICLE XI.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ADVERSE ACTION APPEAL  
 
Section 4. Procedure 
 
When an employee or group of employees has a grievance, the following successive steps are to be taken unless 
otherwise provided. The number of calendar days indicated for each step should be considered the maximum, unless 
otherwise provided, and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits set forth may 
be extended by mutual consent. The last step initiated by an employee shall be considered to be the step at which 
the grievance is resolved. A decision to rescind a disciplinary suspension, demotion or dismissal must be approved 
by the Appointing Authority before the decision becomes effective. 
 
Informal Resolution. Prior to the submission of a formal grievance, the employee and supervisor should meet to 
discuss the problem and seek to resolve it informally. Either the employee or the supervisor may involve the Human 
Resources Office as a resource to help resolve the grievance. Mediation may be used at any step in the process and 
is encouraged. Mediation is the neutral facilitation of the conflict between or among parties where the facilitator helps 
the parties find a mutually agreeable outcome. 
 
Step 1. If no resolution to the grievance is reached informally, the employee who wishes to pursue a grievance shall 
present the grievance to the supervisor in writing. The written grievance must be received by the supervisor within 
fifteen calendar days of the event or within fifteen calendar days of learning of the event or condition. The supervisor 
shall respond to the grievance within five calendar days after receipt of the grievance. The supervisor should, and is 
encouraged to, consult with any employee of the County in order to reach a correct, impartial, fair and equitable 
determination or decision concerning the grievance. Any employee consulted by the supervisor is required to 
cooperate to the fullest extent possible. 
 
The response from each supervisory level for each step in the formal grievance process shall be in writing and 
signed and dated by the supervisor. In addition, the employee shall sign a copy to acknowledge receipt thereof. The 
responder at each step shall send copies of the grievance and response to the Human Resources Director. 
 
Step 2. If the grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the employee by the supervisor, the employee may 
appeal, in writing, to the Department Head within five calendar days after receipt of the response from Step 1. The 
Department Head shall respond to the appeal, stating the determination of decision within five calendar days after 
receipt of the appeal.   
 
Step 3.  

 (For general County employees only) If the grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the employee 
by the Department Head, the employee may appeal, in writing, to the County Manager within five 
calendar days after receipt of the response from Step 2. The County Manager shall address the appeal, 
and in the Manager’s discretion may meet with the employee to discuss the grievance will but in any 
event shall make a decision on the grievance within ten calendar days of the appeal.  
 

 (For employees only in the Social Services Department) If the grievance is not resolved to the 
satisfaction of the employee by the Department Head, the employee may appeal the decision to the 
North Carolina Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH) within thirty calendar days of the receipt of the 
Department Head's decision. The findings of the OAH will be forwarded to the State Personnel 
Commission. The decision of the State Personnel Commission shall be advisory only and the 
Department Head shall have the final decision.  Discrimination cases may be appealed directly to the 
OAH. 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 96



 

Page | 42  
 

Step 4. If the grievance is not resolved to their satisfaction, the employee may appeal in writing, to Human 
Resources requesting their grievance to be referred to the Board of Commissioners. This process should be utilized 
especially in cases where the employee’s grievance concerns actions or alleged actions of the County Manager. The 
appeal shall be heard at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Commissioners if practical, but in no 
event more than 15 days after notice of appeal is received by Human Resources. In such cases the Special 
Grievance Committee’s report shall be final.  
 
Special Note: The Sheriff and Register of Deeds, as Elected Officials shall carry out the responsibilities designated 
above assigned to as the County Manager in their respective departments. Further, any such decision by the Sheriff 
or Register of Deeds shall be final and employees of those departments shall have no further administrative remedy.  
 
 
Once the employee has exhausted all administrative remedies contained herein the employee may utilize the North 
Carolina General Court of Justice to such extent is allowed by law.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 96



            
      

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
          
 
 
 
Item Number: 4.A 

     

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2015-10-01  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-10-01 
- Proposed amendments to Chapter 151 
(Unified Development Ordinance) of the 
Camden County Code Ordinances 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
New state law prohibits the placement of Design Standards (Article 
151.069) on single family dwellings and modular homes.  
 
With the adoption of Camden’s Drainage Manual some of the requirements 
exceed those stated in the Unified Development Ordinance.  The proposed 
amendment’s address those requirements and clarifies existing language 
in the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Hold public hearing. 

 

After public hearing consider amending agenda under new business for 

consideration of Ordinance No. 2015-10-01. 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 9 of 96



 1 

Ordinance No. 2015-10-01 2 
 3 

An Ordinance 4 
Amending the Camden County 5 

Code of Ordinances 6 
   7 

Camden County, North Carolina 8 
 9 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 10 
follows: 11 

 12 
Article I: Purpose 13 
 14 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 15 
Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 16 
Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as otherwise 17 
incorporated into the Camden County Code. 18 
  19 

Article II. Construction 20 
 21 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 22 
additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 23 
considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed  ordinance shall be 24 
shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 25 
 26 

Article III.  Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code  27 
                         which shall read as follows: 28 
 29 
 30 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 31 
 32 
§ 151.069  DESIGN STANDARDS. 33 
 34 

 See §§ 151.380 through 151.387 of this chapter for further criteria for any development 35 
within a special flood hazard area. 36 
 37 
 (A) Except as otherwise provided herein, the following design standards shall apply to all 38 
site-built, modular and mobile single-family and multi-family homes erected, constructed, 39 

installed, placed or otherwise located in the county, but shall not apply to commercial structures.  40 
No certificate of occupancy may be issued until the Administrator determines that the applicable 41 

appearance criteria have been met: 42 
 43 
 (B) The following design standards shall apply to all modular and site-built homes erected, 44 
constructed, installed, placed or otherwise located in the county, but shall not apply to 45 
commercial structures: 46 
 47 

Page 10 of 96



  (1) The minimum vertical rise for a roof shall be 6 feet for each 12 feet of horizontal 48 

run. 49 
 50 
  (2) Not less than 50% of the entire roof area of the house shall have a minimum 51 
vertical rise of 6 feet for each 12 feet of horizontal run. 52 
 53 
  (3) The calculation of the minimum roof area required to meet the 50% threshold shall 54 
not include the roof area covering a dormer window. 55 
 56 
  (4) The minimum vertical rise for a roof shall be 4 feet for each 12 feet of horizontal 57 
run over any style of dormer windows. 58 
 59 
  (5) The minimum vertical rise for a roof shall be 3 feet for each 12 feet of horizontal 60 

run over non-heated space such as porches. 61 
 62 
 (C) The following appearance standards shall apply to all modular homes erected, 63 
constructed, installed, placed or otherwise located in R-3 and GUD districts: 64 
 65 
  (1) No modular home may be constructed or installed that does not have at least a 66 
porch at the front entrance of the structure.  Such porch shall have a minimum area of 54 square 67 
feet, and the calculation of such area shall not include any steps. 68 
 69 
  (2) The sides of all porches and steps shall be constructed with wood, masonry or 70 
concrete, but no metal. 71 
 72 
  (3) All porches shall have a roof attached to the modular home and shall extend over 73 

the entire porch. 74 
 75 
  (4) The curtain wall or foundation shall have a visible exterior of one of the following:  76 
true brick or natural stone. 77 
 78 
 (D) The following appearance standards shall apply to all Class A, Class B and Class C 79 
mobile homes.  No certificate of occupancy may be issued until the Administrator determines 80 

that the applicable appearance criteria have been met: 81 
 82 
  (1) Class A mobile homes may be installed in R-1 and R-2 zoning districts with at least 83 
the following appearance standards: 84 
 85 

   (a) The curtain wall or foundation shall have a visible exterior of one of the 86 
following: true brick or natural stone. 87 

 88 
   (b) 1. The mobile home is to be installed not less than the same distance from 89 
the right-of-way as any principle structure on an adjacent property on the same side of the 90 
roadway. 91 
 92 
    2. In those instances where an adjoining property has a principal structure 93 

Page 11 of 96



located inside the required front setback area, and such principal structure is located within 150 94 

feet of the proposed site for installation of the Class A mobile home, then the proposed Class A 95 
mobile home may be installed at a setback equal to the structure on the adjacent property or 25 96 
feet from the right-of-way, whichever is greater. 97 

 98 
   (c) There shall be a front porch to the mobile home having dimensions of not less 99 
than five feet wide and five feet deep.  The rear or side porch shall have dimensions of not less 100 
than three feet wide and three feet deep.  The front and sides of all porches and steps shall be 101 
constructed with wood, stone, masonry, concrete, or similar looking composite material. 102 
 103 
  (2) Class B and Class C mobile homes may be installed in the R-1 zoning district and 104 
within approved mobile home parks subject to the following appearance standards: 105 
 106 

   (a) The curtain wall shall be of all weather material covering all exposed 107 
underpinning. 108 
 109 
   (b) 1. The mobile home is to be installed not less than the same distance from 110 
the right-of-way as any principle structure on an adjacent property on the same side of the 111 
roadway. 112 
 113 
    2. In those instances where an adjoining property has a principal structure 114 
located inside the required front setback area, and such principal structure is located within 150 115 
feet of the proposed site for installation of the Class B or C mobile home, then proposed Class B 116 
or C mobile home may be installed at a setback equal to the structure on the adjacent property or 117 
25 feet from the right-of-way, whichever is greater. 118 
 119 

   (c) There shall be a porch at each entrance to the structure having dimensions of 120 
not less than three feet wide and three feet deep.  The front and sides of all porches and steps 121 
shall be constructed with wood, stone, masonry, concrete, or similar looking composite material. 122 
 123 
  (3) Mobile homes that are installed as a change out to an existing mobile home must 124 
meet these appearance standards. 125 

 126 

 127 
§ 151.232  DESIGN STANDARDS AND CRITERIA. 128 
 129 
 All major subdivisions shall be designed to meet the following requirements: 130 
 131 
(F) Drainage. 132 

 133 
  (1) Each subdivision shall provide adequate storm drainage for all areas in the 134 

subdivision as described in Article 151.400 and the Camden County Stormwater Drainage 135 
Design Manual.  A combination of storage and controlled release of stormwater run-off is 136 
required.  The release rate of stormwater from all developments shall not exceed the ten-year 137 
stormwater run-off from the area in its natural state (post-development vs. pre-development).  138 
All free flowing storm drainage systems shall be designed to accommodate the run-off generated 139 
by a ten-year design storm or State Department of Transportation (NCDOT) standards if more 140 

Page 12 of 96



restrictive and the system will be maintained by NCDOT if the system is located within the 141 

NCDOT right-of-way.  Plans must show, at minimum, the following information: 142 
 143 
   (a) All culvert inverts, including driveway culverts; 144 
 145 
   (b) Direction of flow; 146 
 147 
   (c) Elevation data of drainways, ditches, swales and the like to outlet; 148 
 149 
   (d) Drainage calculations for drainway design within boundaries of proposed 150 
subdivision and off-site, if appropriate; and 151 
 152 
   (e) Total pre-development and post-development run-off in CFS (cubic foot per 153 

second) volume leaving development area. 154 
 155 
  (2) Plans must address maintenance of the drainage system and who will be the 156 
responsible party to ensure proper maintenance is performed on the drainage system.  The plan 157 
will be reviewed and inspected by county planning and technical review staff. 158 
 159 

    (J) Lots. 160 

               (6) Lot Grading - Minimum desirable slope shall be not less than 1%, minimum 161 

acceptable slope shall be not less than 0.5%.  Construction plans shall provide sufficient grades, 162 
ridge lines and directional arrows to define the proposed drainage pattern of the entire lot. A 163 
minimum of seven proposed lot grades shall be provided; four at the corners; two at the side 164 
yard midpoints; and one grade located at the center of the lot (rear of typical structure location). 165 

Intermediate grades will be defined by linear interpolation of lot grades provided. Note Type A, 166 
B, or AB lot drainage for each lot. Overland flow onto adjacent offsite property is generally 167 
unacceptable. Commercial/Industrial subdivision plans shall provide lot grading to facilitate 168 
drainage until final development of individual parcels. Single Family Detached Lot Grading 169 
Policy:  170 
 171 

        (a)  Construction plans for all new subdivisions will show proposed lot grades to the 172 

nearest 0.1’.  173 
               (b) An engineer’s or land surveyor’s certification shall be submitted to the County prior 174 

to final plat approval certifying that lot grades are within 0.4’ of proposed grades and a 175 
minimum positive slope of 0.25% exists in the direction indicated in the approved plan. 176 

Certification may be waived in cases where approved drainage plans showing existing grades 177 

meet the criteria.  178 

               (c) Lots shall be graded to within 0.1’ of the final grade prior to being certified for a 179 
Certificate of Elevation.  A minimum grade of 0.5% must be provided on the lot. A certification is 180 
required from a Land Surveyor confirming this lot grading.  See the County’s “Certificate of 181 
Elevation Grade Adjacent to Structure and Finished Floor of Structure for Compliance with 182 
Final Plat.”  183 

               (d)  The as constructed elevations of culverts shall be deemed acceptable if the as 184 
constructed invert elevation is within 0.12’ of the proposed grade, provided, however, that 185 

Page 13 of 96



elevations resulting in a flat or adverse slope will be deemed unacceptable even if within the 186 

0.12’ tolerance. 187 
 188 

§ 151.233  REQUIRED MAJOR SUBDIVISION SUBMISSION DOCUMENTS AND 189 
INFORMATION. 190 
 191 

 Sketch Plat Preliminary 

Plat 

Final Plat 

Project; Plat Information: 

Drainage calculations in order to comply with state and 

county stormwater/drainage regulations 

 X  

 192 
 193 

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT 194 
 195 

§ 151.384 GENERAL STANDARDS. 196 
 197 

            (15) Excavation and filling in the floodplain areas, areas noted as AE in the FIRM maps, 198 

may be allowed at the approval of the Countyt.  Cut and fill for new development in the 199 

floodplain will only be acceptable if the net volume available within the floodplain remains the 200 

same (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/advanceSearch).  The volumes will be judged from one foot 201 

contour to the next.  No credit will be provided for excavation below the normal water elevation 202 

of the creek or below the ground water table, whichever is higher.  The engineer will provide the 203 

areas and volumes at one foot contour intervals for the existing conditions and demonstrate 204 

through volume calculations that the proposed condition equals or provides more storage 205 

volume for the development.  The calculation and demonstration shall begin at the normal 206 

elevation, or invert elevation, and proceed by even one foot increments to the FIRM reported 207 

base flood elevation for the immediate area.  The cut and fill within the floodplain area must take 208 

place within the general confines of the development or within 500’ of the river station shown on 209 

the FEMA maps 210 

            (16) A parcel which lies within the AE Flood zone and is within a portion of a creek or 211 
river which has riverine hydraulic characteristics, may fill one time only up to five percent (5%) 212 

of the flood zone area within the parcel’s boundary.  This is a onetime only occurrence and 213 

supersedes Item 2 of this Division.  This exception is provided to allow a reasonable engineering 214 
design of a property and a connection or roadway from one area to another.  This exception 215 
should not be construed to include floodways and non-encroachment zones.  Filling over five 216 

percent (5%) will require a balance of cut and fill as dictated by Item 2 of this Division.   217 
 218 

DRAINAGE, EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 219 
 220 

Page 14 of 96

https://msc.fema.gov/portal/advanceSearch


§ 151.400  DRAINAGE.   WHEREAS, the issue of storm water management is of substantial 221 

concern to the Camden County Commissioners and the people of Camden County; and whereas 222 

after thorough reflection and study, the Camden County Commissioners find the following facts: 223 

 -  Given the topography of Camden County its citizens are challenged with storm water 224 
runoff management which can be a danger to health and property. 225 
 226 
 -  Such topographical slopes as exists in Camden County which can be as modest as zero 227 
percent to two percent over vast areas including those portions of real property which are 228 
improved with residential and commercial structures. 229 
 230 
 - Such topography severely limits, if not completely prohibits, storm water runoff and 231 
natural drainage that might be found in other areas of the state. 232 

 233 
 -  Further, such topography can expose the County and its citizens to standing water and 234 
flooding. 235 
 236 
 - The elevation of surface waters at drainage outfalls and the hydraulic grade lines 237 
within and outside of a residential or commercial development site are critical to designing 238 
storm water systems to accommodate the often substantial quantities of runoff that could result 239 
from hurricanes, tropical storms, nor’easters and sustained periods of intense rain all of which 240 
the County is subject to receive on a frequent basis. 241 
 242 
 - Rain water tends to be held on undeveloped or agricultural land, often standing in 243 
agricultural fields to a depth of several inches for lengthy periods of time which in turn 244 
attenuates the flow of water from agricultural fields thereby reducing agricultural runoff to a 245 

greatly lesser amount than what would be typically expected in other areas of the state. 246 
 247 
 - Development of the land, both residential and commercial will change the 248 
impervious/pervious nature and compaction character of the soil and further restrict natural 249 
attenuation.   250 
 251 
Now, therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, and in the exercise of its Police 252 
Powers granted by the North Carolina General Assembly, the Camden County Board of  253 
Commissioners for the Health, Safety, and Welfare of the public, now legislates the following 254 

standards for planning and construction of stormwater systems for both residential and non-255 
residential developments within this County.    256 
 257 

  258 
 259 

(A) Stormwater drainage.  Each residential/non-residential subdivision or commercial site  260 
plan shall provide adequate storm drainage certified by a North Carolina registered engineer or a 261 

North Carolina Licensed Surveyor, (with proven experience in stormwater drainage) for all areas 262 
in the subdivision.  263 
 264 

(B) Use of the Camden County Stormwater Drainage Manual is mandated by this 265 

Page 15 of 96



ordinance.  The methods outlined in the manual are not the only methods acceptable for use.  266 

Any deviations from these methods, however, must still meet or exceed the intended results and 267 
be reviewed and approved by the County. 268 
 269 

(C) A combination of storage and controlled release of stormwater run-off is required.  270 
The release rate of stormwater from all developments shall not exceed the ten-year stormwater 271 
run-off from the area in its natural state (post-development vs. pre-development). All free-272 
flowing storm drainage systems shall be designed to accommodate the run-off generated by a 273 
ten-year design storm or North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) standards if 274 
more restrictive. Master drainage stormwater studies for developments shall include and make a 275 
part of the analysis any previous subdivision of the property which occurred within the five years 276 
of the proposed major development. 277 
 278 

(1) Conveyance systems draining over 300 acres shall be designed for the 25 year  279 
Storm. 280 

 (2  )Stormwater systems that meet the following criteria will be considered sufficient to 281 
 accommodate the 10 year storm: 282 
 283 

(a) Acceptable hydraulic grade lines for 10-year storm designs in open drainage  284 
systems shall be no higher than 0.25 feet (3”) below the edge of pavement.  285 
 286 

(b) Acceptable hydraulic grade lines for 10-year storm designs in closed drainage  287 
systems shall be no higher than 0.5 feet (6”) below the flow line of the gutter pan 288 
 289 

(c) Additionally, the maximum static elevation of the 100-year flood shall not  290 
inundate the lowest centerline point of any proposed road by more than 0.75’ (9 inches). 291 

 292 
(D) The following information must be provided as prescribed in the Camden County  293 

Stormwater Drainage Manual: 294 
 295 
  (1)  Elevation survey of entire tract with topo lines at one-foot intervals; 296 
 297 
  (2) All culvert inverts (including driveway culverts); 298 

 299 
  (3) Direction of flows; 300 
 301 
  (4) Downstream analysis (cross-sections) of drainage way to outlet (creek, stream, 302 
river and the like) and upstream analysis as stated in Camden’s Storm Water Drainage Design 303 

Manual; 304 
 305 

  (5) Stormwater storage analysis (storing the differential between the outlet ditch 306 
capacity at bank full and the 100-year storm event throughout the proposed development area) 307 
and show minimum lot elevations; 308 
 309 
  (6) Drainage calculations for drainway design within boundaries of proposed 310 
subdivision and off-site, if appropriate;  311 

Page 16 of 96



 312 

  (7) Show total pre-development and post-development run-off in CFS (cubic feet per 313 
second) volume leaving development area; 314 
 315 
           (8)  Drainage studies shall demonstrate that the retention systems recover the percentage 316 
as stated in the County’s Storm Water Drainage Design Manual of their maximum 10 year 317 
storage within 72 hours from the beginning (hour 0) of a Type III storm. 318 
 319 
     (9)  Along all existing drainage ways within proposed development areas, swales 320 
(minimum 6:1 side slopes) are preferred over traditional ditches. Swales shall have a 10 foot 321 
easement that extends 5 feet on each side of the centerline.  Maintenance easements the width of 322 
the swale shall be centered over the swale; 323 
 324 

     (10) There shall be a 30-foot drainage/maintenance easement on all lead ditches that carry 325 
water from upstream through the development to the outfall; 326 
 327 
  (11) If swales are not utilized, then all ditches and canals will require minimum of 30 328 
feet of open space from the top of bank on one side or the other (maintenance area); and 329 
  330 
  (12) Developer will be responsible for upgrading drainage system to outlet subject to 331 
obtaining permission from all property owners adjacent to the watercourse outlet (See Division 332 
7, paragraph 12 of the Drainage Manual). 333 
 334 

(E) Plans must address maintenance of the drainage system and who will be the  335 
responsible party to ensure proper maintenance is performed on the drainage system. The plan 336 
will be reviewed and inspected by County Technical Staff members.  337 

 338 
 339 

 340 

§ 151.401  DEVELOPMENTS MUST DRAIN PROPERLY. 341 
 342 
 (A) All developments shall be provided with a drainage system that is adequate to prevent 343 
the undue retention of surface water on the development site.  Surface water shall not be 344 

regarded as unduly retained if: 345 
 346 
  (1) The retention results from a technique, practice or device deliberately installed as 347 
part of an approved sedimentation or storm water runoff control plan; or 348 
 349 

  (2) The retention is not substantially different in location or degree than that 350 
experienced by the development site in its pre-development stage unless the retention presents a 351 

danger to health or safety. 352 
 353 
 (B) No surface water may be channeled or directed into a sanitary sewer. 354 
 355 
 (C) Whenever practicable, the drainage system of a development shall coordinate with and 356 
connect to the drainage systems or drainage ways on surrounding properties or streets. 357 

Page 17 of 96



 358 

 (D) Use of drainage swales rather than curb and gutter and storm sewers in subdivisions is 359 
provided for in §§ 151.170 through 151.184.  Private roads and access ways within unsubdivided 360 
developments shall utilize curb and gutter and storm drains to provide adequate drainage if the 361 
grade of the roads or access ways is too steep to provide drainage in another manner or if other 362 
sufficient reasons exist to require the construction. 363 
 364 
 (E) Construction specifications for drainage swales, curbs and gutters and storm drains are 365 
contained in the County’s Stormwater Drainage Manual. 366 
 367 
 368 

 369 
Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this   

 
day of             , 2015. 370 

 371 
 372 
       County of Camden 373 
 374 
       _____________________________ 375 
        P. Michael McLain, Chairman 376 
       Board of Commissioners 377 
ATTEST: 378 
 379 
____________________________ 380 
Angie Wooten 381 
Clerk to the Board 382 
 383 
 384 

Page 18 of 96



            

      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
          

 

 

 

Item Number:  4.B 

     

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   SUP Findings of Facts/Preliminary Plat 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Public Hearing – Special Use Permit 

Preliminary Plat Green Meadows – 9 lot 

Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-08-04) 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

Green Meadows LLC (Keith Nowell) represented by Hollis Ellis of CAE Inc., is 

applying for a Special Use Permit for Preliminary Plat - Green Meadows Major 

Subdivision (9 lots) located off Pudding Ridge Road in South Mills Township. 

 

Property was rezoned from Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1) on 

March 18, 2013 (Ordinance 2013-01-01). 

 

Planning Board will meet to consider Special Use Permit application on September 

16
th

 and 30th, 2015 and after discussion with staff, adjacent property owners and 

developer, board recommended approval of the Special Use Permit for Preliminary 

Plat Green Meadows subdivision with the conditions as stated in Staffs Findings on 

a 6-1 vote.      

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

At the conclusion of the public hearing, request consider amending agenda to add 

Special Use Permit for Preliminary Plat Green Meadows major subdivision (9 lots). 

 

MOTION MADE 

BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 

 

VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

S. Duckwall  ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs       ____ 

ABSENT        ____ 

RECUSED     ____ 

 

Page 19 of 96



Page 20 of 96



Page 21 of 96



Page 22 of 96



Page 23 of 96



Page 24 of 96



Page 25 of 96



Page 26 of 96



Page 27 of 96



Page 28 of 96



Page 29 of 96



Page 30 of 96



Page 31 of 96



Page 32 of 96



Page 33 of 96



Page 34 of 96



Page 35 of 96



Page 36 of 96



Page 37 of 96



Page 38 of 96



Page 39 of 96



Page 40 of 96



Page 41 of 96



Page 42 of 96



Page 43 of 96



Page 44 of 96



Page 45 of 96



Page 46 of 96



Page 47 of 96



Page 48 of 96



Page 49 of 96



Page 50 of 96



Page 51 of 96



Page 52 of 96



Page 53 of 96



Page 54 of 96



Page 55 of 96



Page 56 of 96



Page 57 of 96



Page 58 of 96



Page 59 of 96



Page 60 of 96



Page 61 of 96



Page 62 of 96



Page 63 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.A 

 

New Business 

 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   7  

Submitted By: Lisa S. Anderson 

 Tax Administrator  

                           
 

ITEM TITLE:   October Monthly Reports 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY:  October Monthly Reports 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 64 of 96



Page 65 of 96



Page 66 of 96



Page 67 of 96



Page 68 of 96



Page 69 of 96



Page 70 of 96



Page 71 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.B 

 

New Business 

 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   1  

Submitted By: County Manager  

                           
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH POLICY FOR 

APPROVAL & OPENING OF CLOSED SESSION 

MINUTES 
 
 

 

 

SUMMARY:   

 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH POLICY FOR APPROVAL & OPENING OF 

CLOSED SESSION MINUTES AND GENERAL ACCOUNTS 

 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 72 of 96



 
RESOLUTION No. 2015-11-01 

 
RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH POLICY FOR APPROVAL & OPENING OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 

AND GENERAL ACCOUNTS 
 
WHEREAS, The North Carolina Open Meetings Statute, G.S. §143-318.11 allows public bodies to meet in Closed Session 
for certain purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute G.S. §143-318.10(e) provides that every public body shall keep full and 
accurate minutes of all official meetings, including any Closed Sessions held pursuant to G.S. §143-318.11; and 
 
WHEREAS, G.S. §143-318.10(e) also provides that minutes or an account of a Closed Session conducted by a public body 
in compliance with G.S. §143-318.11 may be withheld from public inspection so long as public inspection would frustrate the 
purpose of a Closed Session and requires that these documents be made public once it is determined that they no longer 
frustrate the purpose of a Closed Session. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Camden County Board of Commissioners does hereby establish the 
following policy for approval and opening of Closed Session minutes and general accounts. 
 

 The Board shall approve the Closed Session minutes and general account in Closed Session "to prevent the disclosure of 
information that is made privileged or confidential by G.S. §143-318.10(e)." Upon approval of Closed Session minutes 
and general account, said minutes and general account are deemed to be sealed until otherwise opened pursuant to the 
terms of this Resolution. 
 

 The Board delegates to the County Attorney and the Clerk to the Board the responsibility to review the Closed Session 
minutes and general accounts annually and to open the Closed Session minutes and general accounts for which the 
purpose of the Closed Session would no longer be frustrated by keeping them closed. 
 

 The Board authorizes the County Attorney to sign and date the action to open any Closed Session minutes or general 
account; and to sign and date the action upon determination that any Closed Session minutes or general accounts should 
remain permanently sealed. 
 

 The Board authorizes the Clerk to insert the opened Closed Session minutes and general accounts into a separate 
"Opened Closed Session Minutes and General Accounts Book." The Closed Session minutes and general accounts that 
the County Attorney determines should remain permanently sealed shall be kept in a separate "Sealed Closed Session 
Minutes and General Accounts Book." 

 
This the ____ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 

   

 
ATTEST: 

 P. Michael McLain - Chairman 

 (SEAL)  

   

Angela Wooten – Clerk to the Board   

 

Page 73 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.A 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   Attachment A & B 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 Closed Session Minutes 
 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 74 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.B 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Collection Report  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Collection Report 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 75 of 96



Tax Collection Report
October 2015

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits Internet

1 17,647.47 17,647.47
2 23,989.97 $1.00-Short 23,989.97
5 20,389.56 27,746.21 $0.46 - Refund 48,135.77

6 25,435.92 $8.17-Refund 25,435.92
7 143.94 143.94

18,354.58 18,354.58
8 22,918.64 $21.62 - Refund 22,918.64
9 11,375.20 11,375.20

12 40,471.01 40,471.01
13 10,521.47 10,521.47
14 9,785.29 9,785.29
15 374,721.63 $702.09 - Refund 374,721.63
16 10,977.02 10,977.02
19 17,000.00 17,000.00!

25,255.89 4,469.55 $17.21 -Refund 29,725.441
20 16,771.021 $3.25 - Refund 16,771.02
21 61.00 $0.92 - Refund 61.00

2,852.06 2,852.06
22 9,490.27 $70.03 - Refund 9,490.27
23 9,617.45 9,617.45
26 26,626.15 26,626.15
27 16,786.12 16,786.12
28 7,763.62 7,763.62
29 978.79 $0.01 - Refund 978.79

9,403.67 9,403.67
30 160.00 160.00

21,872.85 S0.40 - Refund 21,872.85
2,782.20 2,782.20

$754,152.79 $32,215.76 $785,024.82 $1,343.73

$786,368.55 $786,368.55

-$824.16 Refund

$0.00 Over

$1.00 Shortage
$0.00

$785,545.39

Submitted bv: (J^pc— Q, f?i/vclcwCr\

Approved by: ^^^^==^^^=^^^^^^^^_

Date: I( - G ~/ <-/

Date:

Page 76 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.C 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   2 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 77 of 96



NAME

Albermarle Electric

Albermarle Electric

Albermarle Electric

Albermarle Electric

Basile Joseph Malloy

J. C. Rountree Sr.

TYPE

REASON NO.

$198.80 Pick/Up-18170
Release - should be exempt R-87350-15

$172.87 Pick/Up-18171
Refund - should be exempt R-80237-15

$172.87 Pick/Up-18172
Refund - should be exempt R-66318-13

$172.87 Pick/Up-18173
Refund - should be exempt R-59480-12

$140.88 Pick-Up-18177
Refund - Military exempt 28403477

$225.09 Pick-Up-18156
Adjustment- land use correction R-88947-15

Page 78 of 96



REFUNDS OVER $100.00

North Carolina Vehicle Tax System

NCVTS Pending Refund report

REFUNDS OVER S100.00

Payee Name Address 1 Address 2 Address 3 Refund Type Status Transaction Refund Description
#

Refund Create Date Authorization

Reason Date

Tax Levy Change Interest Total
Jurisdiction Type I I Chanae I Chanae

MALLOY, 118 PINE
BASILE RIDGE DR

Submitted by

SOUTH MILLS. Adjustment >= 0028403477 CJH6800 PENDING 37407546 Refund Generated due Military 10/30/2015
NC 27976 S100 to adjustment on Bill

#0028403477-2015-

2015-0000-00

Date l-ol-lSi/)cuc§l • Q.*A^n>"v
Lisa S. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden County

Approved by Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County Board of Commissioners

Page 1 of 3

1843

1

Tax

Tax

(S130.36)

(S1.92)

(S8.48)

(S0.12)

($138.84)

($2.04)

Refund $140.88

Page 79 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.D 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: Various Departments 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Volunteer Forms  
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 Anna Smith - Library Board  

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 80 of 96



Page 81 of 96



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   9.A-G 

 

 

 INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   November 16, 2015 

Attachments:   7 

Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

A. Register of Deeds Report - October   
B. Youth Forum Sponsorship Letter   
C. SPCA Meeting Minutes - October   
D. NCDOT Newsletter – November 2015   
E. ECSU ranks in top 20 for best value 
F. 2016 Holiday Schedule – NC Administrative Office of the Courts 
G. 2017 Holiday Schedule – NC Administrative Office of the Courts 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 82 of 96



Page 83 of 96



Page 84 of 96



Angela Wooten

Subject: FW: NWDB Youth Forum
Attachments: imageOOl.png; Att02B88650.htm; Youth Forum Sponsorship Letter.doc;

Att02B88050.htm

Youth Committee,

The NWDB Youth Program will be hosting a Youth Forum on Nov 18, 2015 from 10:00am - 2:00pm at the K.E. White
Center in Elizabeth City. The is an open discussion with youth between the ages of 16-24 to voice their concerns about
their education and career dreams and goals. We want to hear what motivates them, challenges they face, things
preventing them from progressing forward and how can we better assist them. Our goals is to have at least 75 youth in
attendance. I have attached a sponsorship letter requesting businesses and partners to donate giveaways for the
youth. Ifyou know of a business that would like to donate please feel free to use this letter or if your business would
like to donate any items it would be greatly appreciated. You are welcome to come and meet and assist with our youth
people. Please let me know if you have any questions and we will discuss this further during our upcoming Youth
Committee meeting on next Tuesday, Nov 10 @ 3:30pm at the Albemarle Commission Hertford, NC.

Lora Apks
youth 'Program Manager
Northeastern "Workforce Vevefojrment 'Board
252-333-5792 (c)
252-426-5753 "Ext 259 (o)
www.nwdbworks.org

Page 85 of 96



CAMDEN

CHOWAN

CURRITUCK

DARE

GATES

HYDE

PASQUOTANK

PERQUIMANS

TYRRELL

WASHINGTON

COLUMBIA

CRESWELL

DUCK

EDENTON

ELIZABETH CITY

GATESVILLE

HERTFORD

KILL DEVIL HILLS

KITTY HAWK

MANTEO

NAGS HEAD

PLYMOUTH

ROPER

SOUTHERN SHORES

WINFALL

November 02, 2015

From: Northeastern Workforce Development Board Youth Program
512 S. Church St.

Hertford, NC 27944

To: Businesses and Partners in NC Northeastern Region

The Northeastern Workforce Development Board Youth Program is
designed to assist youth between ages 16-24 in completing their
education, developing works skills and pursuing a career path to become
self-sufficient adults. The NWDB Youth Program is hosting a forum with
youth on November 18, 2015 at the K.E. White Center Elizabeth City, NC
from 10:00am - 2:00pm. This will be an open discussion to give youth an
opportunity to voice what motivates them, the challenges they face and
things preventing them from reaching their education and career goals
and becoming successful adults.

The NWDB Youth Program would like the help and support of our local
businesses and partners by donating one or more of the below items.
These will be given to the youth as an incentive for their participation and
encouragement to continue striving to become successful adults.

Suggested Items:

Electronic Tablet, IPad, Notebook, etc.

Headphones
Fitbit

Gifts Cards valued at $20 or more

Backpacks

Thank you for your consideration. We value your partnership with the
Northeastern Workforce Development Board Youth Program. If you have
any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at 252-426-5753 ext. 259
or email me at Iaplesffialbemarlecommission.org.

Lora Aples
NWDB Youth Program Manager

Zach Bray
Chairman

Dave Whitmer

Director www.NWDBWorks.org
512 South Church Street

Hertford, NC 27944

P: 252.426.5753

F: 252.426.5435

Page 86 of 96



Subscribe Share • Past Issues Translate

View this email in your browser

Northeastern

SP@A
Nor t h C a r p 1 Ln a , I jn c .i

SPCA of Northeastern NC, Inc.

Minutes

The SPCA of NENC met at 5:00 pm at William Wood Realty on October 6,
2015. Meeting was called to order by Kim Parrish, President.

Board members present were Diana Gardner, Ann Hoffman, Lisa Harman-
Wakefield, Bettie Lyons, Debbie Mason Lesley Miner, Kim Parrish, Jan
Riley, Wendy Rumrill and JoEllen Smith. Also present, Michael McClain,
Camden Commissioner, Doreen Warren, Finance officer, and member,

Roy Hammond. Excused were Board Members; Phil Donahue, Gillian
Carlsen, Sue Hayhurst, Nancy Lamb, John Miner and Courtney
Reichenbach.

The agenda was accepted..

MINUTES:

The Minutes were accepted as written.

Lesley Miner reported that she sent out 58 thank you notes.

President's Report
Kim announced that the Dress Rehearsal for the Encore Presentation

would be held at 6:30 pm on October 14th.

Also, Montero's is doing 10 charity days and the SPCA is one of the

designated charities. On November 24th a percentage of sales will go to
our organization.

Kim said that the USDA requires us to select a company for Construction
Materials testing. We received two bids, one from GET for $5,107.70 and
another from Terracom Co. for $3,622. Jan Riley moved that we accept the
low bid of $3.622 from Terracom Company for Construction Materials

Page 87 of 96



Testing Lesley Miner seconded the motion and all ten Board members
voted "aye" with no "nays". Motion passed.

Kim said that after two years, Bill Dagger! the architect wants to revert to
an hourly rate but still wants his percentage. USDA ia negotiating with
him.

TREASURER'S REPORT:

Doreen Warren distributed copies of the Income and Expense statement
for September 2015. Total Income for the General Operating account for
September was $19,521.59 and expenses were $21,664.05.
Balance in the New Building Fund is $256,592.02.

SHELTER COMMITTEE REPORT

No Shelter Statistics were available for September, due to Sabrenna'
being sick. Jo Ellen reported that Sabrenna would like to raise the rate of
the reclaim administrative fee to $25 plus $10 per day boarding fee. Jan
Riley moved that we accept the recommendation of $25 administrative fee
plus $10 per day boading fee. Bettie Lyons seconded the motion and
motion passed.

Another recommendation from Sabrenna is that we raise the adoption fee
for dogs from $85 to $90, but leave the adoption fee for cats at $50.
JoEllen explained that the adoption fee includes vaccinations, microchip,
collar/tags, and spay/neuter. Lesley Miner moved that we raise the
adoption fee for dogs to $90 effective November 1. 2015. Lisa Harman
Wakefield seconded the motion and motion passed.

JoEllen said there were only two rescues this month, 2 dogs went to
Norfolk SPCA.

She also needs volunteers to go to Petsmart at Greenbriar for an adoption

event on October 10th. Under upcoming events there are two scheduled
for October 24th. She needs one volunteer to go to the PETA Adoption
event and volunteers are needed for the Rabies clinic to be held in

Camden on the same day..

Jo Ellen announced that Pet Sense has a new manager.

Lesley Miner asked about "Stock the Shelter" which takes place at
WalMart adoption events. Jo Ellen said it would probably be held in
November.

Wendy is working on more grants with Sabrenna. Also they are looking

Page 88 of 96



into a new membership format with perhaps some perks for members.

OLD BUSINESS

1) Jan Riley reported that sales of bricks were now 318. There are 500
"No Ball" Ball invitations set to be mailed.

NEW BUSINESS

1) Bettie Lyons reported that the "Cookie Walk" Wlill be held at Seligs
downtown. The committee would like each Board member to ask three

friends to bake six dozen cookies. The event will be held on December

4th from 5pm - 8 pm. Cookies will be sold for $5 per dozen. Please email
Bettie and let her know what kind of cookies you can bring.

2) Lesley Miner said that the Christmas parade will be held on Saturday

December 5th at 5:30 PM. Theme is "A Storybook Christmas". Lesley
feels that we need to scale back on last year and welcomes any ideas.

Please email her. We will bring it to the table next meeting, November 3rd.

UPCOMING EVENTS:

Downtown Waterfront Market, Saturday Oct. 10th, 9am - 1pm
Petsmart Greenbrier Sat, Oct 10-11am-3 pm
Grandy Primary Fall Festival, Sat Oct 17,11am - 3pm
Chrome Pony Mustang Club Car Show, fund raiser for SPCA, Hall
Hyundai, Sat Oct 17,10am - 2pm

Bring on the Bulls, 17th Street, Oceanfront Park VA Beach, Sunday, Oct 18
Noon - 4Pm

PETA Adoption event, PETA Office, Norfolk Front St., Sat. Oct 24,11 am -
2pm

Rabies Shot Clinic, Camden, Sat Oct 24th, 11am - 2pm
Animal Howl-O-Ween Adoptathon, Southgate Mall, Sat Oct 31,10am - 2pm

Meeting adjourned.
Submitted by Doreen Warren

NEXT MEETING, TUESDAY NOVEMBER 3,2015, 5:00 PM AT HOWARD
HANNA/WILLIAM WOOD REALTY

(NEXT TO BOWLING ALLEY)

Copyright ©2015 SPCA of Northeastern NC All rightsreserved.

unsubscribe from this list update subscription preferences

Page 89 of 96



Transportation

November 2015 Newsletter

NCDOT Reminds

Motorists to Keep
Alert for Deer During
Fall Months

As the temperature starts
dropping and leaves start
falling, another sign of the
changing season is more
deer along North Carolina
roadways and in turn, a greater chance of hitting a deer.

Between 2012 and 2014, nearly half of the 58,372 animal-
related crashes in the state took place from October through
December. About 90 percent of those involved deer.

A new N.C. Department of Transportation study shows there

were 17,831 animal-related crashes in 2014 - the lowest
number since 2006. But over the past three years, animal-
related crashes claimed 11 lives, injured 3,386 drivers and
passengers and caused nearly $145 million in damages.

The top five counties with animal-related crashes reported last
year in North Carolina include:

• Wake: 794

• Pitt: 562

• Guilford: 550

• Duplin: 445
• Randolph: 444

Find out where your county stacks up.

Perquimans and
Pasquotank Bridge
Replacements More than
Half-Way Done

A project to replace several
bridges in Perquimans and

Pasquotank counties is more than Muddy Creek Road Bridge
half-way done.

Since 2013, McLean Contracting Co. of Glen Burnie, MD, has

Division I
COUNTIES SERVED / Bertie, Camden. Chowan,
Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hertford, Hyde.Martin,
Northampton, Pasquotank.Perquimans. Tyrrell,
Washington

Stay Connected

N.C. Transportation
Now

On the latest N.C.

Transportation Now, the
department awards a
contract for construction

of a new temporary
bridge on Pea Island, a
new connector road has

opened in Mooresville to
provide better access to
industrial areas, and
tickets are now available

for the Santa Train.

Watch the latest N.C.

Transportation Now.

OBX Storm Damage
Repairs

Kitty Hawk: Work began
Oct. 27 on repairs to a
section of N.C. 12/Beach

in Kitty Hawk near
Milepost 4 that was
damaged during a storm
in early October.

Page 90 of 96



worked to replace the following bridges:

• Burnt Mill Road in Perquimans County
• Nixonton Road in Pasquotank County
• Great Hope Church Road in Perquimans County
• Dances Bay Road in Pasquotank County
• Muddy Creek Road in Perquimans County

These replacements are part of a $5.8 million contract awarded
by NCDOT to McLean Contracting in 2013 for the replacement
of six bridges in Perquimans County and two bridges in
Pasquotank County. All bridges are expected to be complete
by spring 2016.

In early November, crews will begin replacement of a 62-year-
old bridge on Perry's Bridge Road north of Belvidere over the
Perquimans River. Once this replacement is complete, crews
will then replace bridges on Turnpike Road and Lake Road in
Perquimans County.

Learn more.

Board Approves Allocation of Additional Funds for
Highway and Bridge Maintenance and Preservation

The recently passed state budget will allow NCDOT to make a
greater investment in taking care of and improving North
Carolina's existing highways and bridges.

The General Assembly appropriated nearly $500 million in
additional funding in the two-year budget (for fiscal years 2016
and 2017) for maintenance and preservation work. NCDOT
distributes these funds yearly to the divisions based on need.

The Board of Transportation approved each division's initial
funding amount for Fiscal Year 2016 at its August meeting, and
approved the additional funding at its October meeting.

Here's what that means for Division 1 for Fiscal Year 2016,
which runs July 1, 2015, until June 30, 2016:

• An additional $2.1 million was allocated to improve
deficient bridges. This brings the division's total Bridge
Program funding to $7.3 million.

• An additional $8 million was allocated for resurfacing,
bringing the total funding for this type of work to $33
million.

• An additional $1.8 million was allocated for highway
preservation, bringing the total funding for this type of
work to $5.2 million.

• An additional $1.7 million was allocated for secondary
roads, bringing the total funding for this type of work to
$12.2 million.

This will allow the division to accelerate work that had been

planned for next fiscal year.

New Temporary Pea Island Bridge Contract Awarded

A $412,933 contract was
awarded to Waff

Contracting Inc. of
Edenton for the

reconstruction of the road

between Kitty Hawk
Road and Lillian Street,
as well as the

reconstruction of the

dune that was washed

away along this stretch of
road. Work is expected to
be complete by mid-
December, weather
permitting. During the
project, traffic will
continue to use U.S.

158/Croatan Highway as
a detour route.

Crews will reconstruct

the dune using 375 10-
foot-long sandbags,
which will be installed

eight feet below the edge
of pavement to protect
the road, and then cover
the bags with sand. They
will also repave the
damaged section of N.C.
12/Beach Road and

install new sand fencing.
The newly constructed
dune system will be
planted with sea grass in
spring 2016.

This new dune will

connect to existing
sandbag dunes on both
sides, allowing for a
continuous line of

sandbags protecting N.C.
12 in this area.

Page 91 of 96



Construction will begin soon on the new temporary
bridge along N.C.
12 at Pea Island in

Dare County.

NCDOT awarded a

$14.3 million
contract to T.A.

Loving Co. of
Goldsboro for the

construction of a

new concrete bridge
that will replace the
existing metal
temporary bridge
constructed in 2011 at New Inlet following Hurricane Irene.

Current temporary bridge on N.C.
12 at Pea Island.

Work can begin as early as Nov. 30, with traffic on the new
bridge by April 12, 2017.

The bridge will be just under a half-mile long, with the southern
end 1,100 feet south of the existing temporary bridge. It will
include 47 spans, each 50 feet in length, and will have the
same elevation as the highest point of the existing temporary
bridge.

Traffic along N.C. 12 will continue to use the existing
temporary bridge while construction is underway. There will be
lane shifts and lane closures in place occasionally throughout
construction; however, the road will remain open to traffic.

The new temporary bridge will be easier to maintain than the
existing temporary bridge, will have at least a 20-year lifespan,
and will allow for better access to and from communities along
the Outer Banks until a long-term solution can be identified.

Jennifer Heiss
Division 1 Communications Officer

Phone:(919)707.2669
iqheiss(Q)ncdot.Qov

Jerry Jennings, P.E.
Division 1 Engineer

Malcolm Fearing
Division 1 Board of Transportation Member

NC Department of Transportation | ncdot.gov

Copyright© 2015. All Rights Reserved.

Page 92 of 96



Angela Wooten

From: ECSU Communications and Marketing <cam@ecsu.edu>
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2015 4:21 PM
To: ECSU Communications and Marketing
Subject: ECSU ranks in top 20 for best valuecolleges in North Carolina

ECSU ranks in top 20 for best value colleges in North Carolina

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE - Best Value Schools, a website dedicated to tracking the best in higher

education, recently placed Elizabeth City State University in the Top 20 of best value colleges in North
Carolina.

ECSU is noted in the study for being one of the most affordable North Carolina colleges, "Thanks to an annual

net price that is nearly impossible to beat," according to an announcement released by Best Value Schools.

The ranking was published in October using National Center for Education Statistics' College Navigator and

PayScale data to identify the schools based on graduation rate, net price, acceptance rate and a 20-year net

return on investment.

Best Value Schools helps students find schools and degree programs, "That can provide the most available
financial aid and assistance, the greatest support and service, the highest return on investment, and the best
overall value."

###

For more information contact:

Communications and Marketing

252-335-3594

cam@ecsu.edu

Page 93 of 96



north Caroi ina

administrative office

,/>/> Courts

April 9, 2015

MEMORANDUM

TO: Judicial Branch of Government

FROM: John W. Smith, Director

SUBJECT: Calendar Year 2016 llolida^Schedule

The 2016 holiday schedule for the Judicial Branch ofGovernment is the same for the Executive
Branch, allowing for twelve holidays.

• -» \£

Holiday

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas

Observance Date

January 1, 2016
January 18,2016
March 25,2016

May 30, 2016
July 4, 2016
September 5, 2016
November 11,2016

November 24 & 25,2016
December 23, 26, & 27, 2016

Office of the Director

Judge John W. Smith

,'448. Raleigh, NC 27602

I 919 890-1391 F 919 890-1915

Day of Week

Friday
Monday
Friday
Monday
Monday
Monday
Friday
Thursday & Friday
Friday, Monday and
Tuesdav

Please remember that any variations in this schedule could result in overtime and premium pay
costs, for which funds have not been budgeted. For this reason, any adjustment or change in this
holiday schedule must be approved in advance by me. After receiving such approval, should court
be held on a scheduled holiday requiring some ofyour employees to work, the employees will be
granted an alternate day off, plus holiday premium pay. Please contact the NCAOC Human
Resources Division if this occurs to determine who is eligible for holiday premium pay, and the
procedures necessary to make appropriate payments.

North Carolina Judicial Center, 901 Corporate Center Drive, Raleigh, NC 27607

Page 94 of 96



North Carolina

administrative office

I gft/ie Courts

Novembers, 2015

MEMORANDUM

TO: Judicial Branch of Government

FROM: Marion R. Warren, Director

SUBJECT: Calendar Year 2017 Holiday Schedule

The 2017 holiday schedule for the Judicial Branch of Government is the same for the Executive
Branch, allowing for twelve holidays.

Holiday

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas

Observance Date

January 2, 2017
January 16, 2017
April 14, 2017
May 29, 2017
July 4, 2017
September 4, 2017
November 10, 2017

November 23 & 24, 2017
December 25, 26, & 27, 2017

Office of the Director

Judge Marion R. Warren
Director

P0 Box 2448, Raleigh, NC 27602
T 919 890-1391 F 919 890-1915

Day of Week

Monday
Monday
Friday
Monday
Tuesday
Monday
Friday
Thursday & Friday
Monday, Tuesday and
Wednesday

Please remember that any variations in this schedule could result in overtime and premium pay
costs, for which funds have not been budgeted. For this reason, any adjustment or change in this
holiday schedule must be approved in advance by me. After receiving such approval, should court
be held on a scheduled holiday requiring some ofyour employees to work, the employees will be
granted an alternate day off, plus holiday premium pay. Please contact the NCAOC Human
Resources Division if this occurs to determine who is eligible for holiday premium pay, and the
procedures necessary to make appropriate payments.

North Carolina Judicial Center, 901 Corporate Center Drive, Raleigh, NC 27607

Page 95 of 96



,:*•'"> STATE o."'>••

North Carolina

administrative office

tftfo Courts

November 5, 2015

MEMORANDUM

TO: Judicial Branch of Government

FROM: Marion R. Warren, Director '

SUBJECT: Calendar Year 2017 Holiday Schedule

The 2017 holiday schedule for the judicial Branch of Government is the same for the Executive
Branch, allowing for twelve holidays.

Holiday

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, jr.'s Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas

Observance Date

January 2, 2017
January 16, 2017
April 14, 2017
May 29, 2017
July 4, 2017
September 4, 2017
November 10, 2017

November 23 & 24, 2017
December 25, 26, & 27, 2017

Office of the Director

Judge Marion R. Warren
Director

PO Box 2448, Raleigh, NC 27602

T 919 890-1391 F 919 890-1915

Day of Week

Monday
Monday
Friday
Monday
Tuesday
Monday
Friday
Thursday & Friday
Monday, Tuesday and
Wednesday

Please remember that any variations in this schedule could result in overtime and premium pay
costs, for which funds have not been budgeted. For this reason, any adjustment or change in this
holiday schedule must be approved in advance by me. After receiving such approval, should court
be held on a scheduled holiday requiring some of your employees to work, the employees will be
granted an alternate day off, plus holiday premium pay. Please contact the NCAOC Human
Resources Division if this occurs to determine who is eligible for holiday premium pay, and the
procedures necessary to make appropriate payments.

North Carolina Judicial Center, 901 Corporate Center Drive, Raleigh, NC 27607

Page 96 of 96


	Agenda
	Closed Session
	Old Business
	Personnel Policy Changes

	Public Hearings
	Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-10-01
	Public Hearing – Special Use Permit

	New Business
	Monthly Tax Report
	Resolution No. 2015-11-01

	Consent Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases
	Volunteer Forms

	Information
	Register of Deed
	Youth Forum Sponsorship Letter
	SPCA Meeting Minutes - October
	NCDOT Newsletter – November 2015
	ECSU ranks in top 20 for best value
	2016 Holiday Schedule
	2017 Holiday Schedule




